
 

 

 
 

22.02.23 
 

Dear Councillor 
 
SUMMONS TO A MEETING OF THE FULL COUNCIL 
 
I hereby summon you to attend the meeting of the Full Council to be held on Thursday, 2 March 2023 
at 7.30 pm. The meeting will be held at Council Chamber - Civic Centre. 
 

 
PAUL TURRELL 
Chief Executive 
01932 425500 
Email: paul.turrell@runnymede.gov.uk 
 

A G E N D A 
  
1.   Mayor's Announcements 

 
 

 
2.   Minutes 

 
To confirm and sign, as a correct record, the Minutes of the meeting of the Council 
held on 9 February 2023. 
 

6 - 17 

 
3.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

 
4.   Declarations of Interest 

 
If Members have an interest in an item, please complete a member interest form 
and email it to Democratic.Services@runnymede.gov.uk by 5pm on the day of the 
meeting. Members are advised to contact the Corporate Head of Law and 
Governance prior to the meeting if they wish to seek advice on a potential interest. 
 

 

 
5.   Speaking or Questions from Members of the Public under Standing Order 12 

 
 

 
6.   Petitions 

 
To receive any petitions from members of the Council under Standing Order 19. 
 

 

 

Public Document Pack

1

mailto:Democratic.Services@runnymede.gov.uk


 

 

7.   Questions from Members of the Council under Standing Order 13 
 
a) Question from Councillor Sylvia Whyte to the Leader of the Council 
  
“In April 2022 I asked the Leader of The Council when elected members would 
receive monthly Enforcement updates.  The Leader advised that “the most 
effective ways of reporting accurate information to Members would be looked at as 
soon as possible after the Election.”  Whilst I and my fellow ward councillors have 
received some verbal updates on some key Enforcement issues in our ward, I 
would like to know when we, and all elected members, will receive a complete list 
of those enforcement issues across the Borough.” 
  
b) Question from Councillor Don Whyte to the Leader of the Council 
  
“Since October 2022 most households in Runnymede will have been 
progressively receiving part of the Government funded £400 Energy Bills Support 
Scheme (EBSS) discount.  These households have a direct relationship with an 
electricity supplier.   
  
Those households that buy their fuel through a third party or are not on mains 
electricity, have as of 20th February, not yet received any of the £400 EBSS 
discount. This includes people who live in park homes, a houseboat or care 
homes. Similarly, those who don’t use mains gas or electric are entitled to a 
payment of £200.    
  
Can the Leader please explain what Runnymede Borough Council is doing or 
planning to do to encourage and help residents to claim their £400 Energy Bill 
Support Scheme (EBSS) discount and or their £200 Alternative Fuel Payment?” 
  
c) Question from Councillor Steve Ringham to the Leader of the Council 
  
“Our next council elections, in May of this year, will be the first to be held where 
polling station voters will be required to show valid Photo ID before they can vote. 
Central government’s excuse is that it is to prevent voter fraud or impersonation. 
However this restriction has not been extended to postal voters. Can the leader of 
the council tell me, with regard to Runnymede in the last 10 years, how many 
instances of voter fraud have been detected, investigated and prosecuted, split 
between postal and polling station voters, and as a percentage of all voters?”  
  
*Clarification – I’ve asked for 10 years but any period will do depending on what 
data you hold 
 

 

 
8.   Recommendations from Committees 

 
 

 
 a)   Asset Management Strategy and associated policies - 

recommendation from the Corporate Management Committee 
 
The Corporate Management Committee is due to meet after the date of 
this agenda’s publication.  Any recommendations will be distributed as part 
of a supplementary agenda. 
 

 

 
 b)   Local Authority Housing Fund - recommendation from the Corporate 

Management Committee 
 
The Corporate Management Committee is due to meet after the date of 
this agenda’s publication.  Any recommendations will be distributed as part 
of a supplementary agenda. 
 

 

 

2



 

 

 c)   Pay Policy Statement - 2023/24 - recommendation from the Corporate 
Management Committee 
 
The Corporate Management Committee is due to meet after the date of 
this agenda’s publication.  Any recommendations will be distributed as part 
of a supplementary agenda. 
 

 

 
 d)   Preliminary Consideration of Mayoral Selection - recommendation 

from the Corporate Management Committee 
 
The Corporate Management Committee is due to meet after the date of 
this agenda’s publication.  Any recommendations will be distributed as part 
of a supplementary agenda. 
 

 

 
9.   Preliminary Consideration of Deputy Mayoral Selection 

 
In accordance with Standing Order 7, Council is asked to consider candidates for 
the office of Deputy Mayor for 2023/24.  
  
If there is more than one nomination, the selection of Deputy Mayor will be 
conducted by secret ballot. In the event of an equality of votes on the nomination, 
the Mayor will exercise a casting or second vote.  
  
The nominee will be put forward as a candidate for the office of Deputy Mayor at 
the Annual Council meeting on 17 May 2023 providing that they are still a member 
of the Council. 
  
(To resolve) 
 

 

 
10.   Delegated Authority to Appoint an Assistant Chief Executive 

 
At its meeting on 19 January 2023, the Corporate Management Committee 
commissioned an Appointments Sub-Committee to administer the recruitment to 
the newly created Assistant Chief Executive post.  As part of the report, the 
committee considered that, in the interest of ensuring an efficient timetable for 
recruiting to this post, it was necessary to seek delegated authority from the 
Council, to formally offer the role to the preferred candidate at the conclusion of 
the shortlisting and interview process. 
  
Recommendation: 
  
That the Corporate Management Committee be delegated authority to make 
a formal offer of employment for the role of Assistant Chief Executive, 
following consideration of the recommendation of the Appointments Sub-
Committee. 
 

 

 
11.   Notices of Motion from Members of the Council under Standing Order 15 

 
To receive and consider any notices of motion from members of the Council under 
Standing Order 15. 
  
a) From Councillor Tom Gracey 
  
This Council notes that the ULEZ expansion will add further costs for residents 
and businesses when budgets are already under pressure, disproportionately 
impacting those on lower incomes, including key workers required to commute to 
London.  
 

 

3



 

 

There is no evidence that ULEZ expansion will deliver improved air quality in outer 
London boroughs, and there is a risk of worsening the situation on Surrey roads.    
Residents within Runnymede should not have to pay a London-centric tax which 
has been developed to provide a source of revenue generation to offset poor 
financial management on the part of the Mayor of London’s administration. 
  
That the Council agrees and resolves the following: 
  

a)    there is consistent and cross-party support for this Council to reduce its 
emissions and impact on the environment as quickly as practically 
possible; 

  
b)    this Council does not support the expansion of the ULEZ. 

  
c)     this Council rejects the proposal by the Mayor of London, Sadiq Khan, to 

expand the ULEZ £12.50 daily charge and potential large fines for non-
compliant vehicles which will hit small businesses and those on lower 
incomes hardest; 

  
d)    the evidence and economic modelling of the impact is wrongly focussed on 

the impact on Londoners and revenues for the Mayor of London, ignoring 
the impact on Runnymede residents who do not have access to the same 
tube and bus networks within the Greater London area; 

  
e)    the roughly £400 million of government funding set aside for the Mayor to 

spend on reducing air pollution would be better spent on public transport, 
cycle ways, and other initiatives rather than a network of ULEZ cameras 
that penalise lower income households and those that must travel for work; 

  
f)      that the Leader of Runnymede Borough Council writes to the Mayor of 

London to request that he reverse his current approach and replace it with 
a strategy that will benefit residents in neighbouring regions alongside 
those in his own jurisdiction; 

  
g)    that the Leader of Runnymede Borough Council invites our local MP and 

group leaders of political groups on Runnymede Borough Council who are 
in agreement with the sentiments raised to co-sign the letter. 

  
b) From Councillor Alex Balkan 
  
Level Crossings Motion 
  
This Council notes that:  
  

       Since the railway lines within the Borough were first bult, the impact of 
level crossings on local residents has increased hugely as the local 
population has expanded. 

  
       Residents have expressed ongoing concern about level crossing waiting 

times which can lead to traffic congestion, resulting air pollution from 
engine idling and can negatively impacts on the quality of life on residents 
living or working near level crossings in the Borough. 

  
       Network Rail continue to investigate innovative ways to reduce the number 

of level crossings across the railway network. This was highlighted in a 
2019 report "Enhancing Level Crossing Safety 2019 - 2029".  

  
       There are ongoing works to improve the efficiency of the signalling at the 

4



 

 

crossings in the Egham area, however, whilst this work is aimed at 
improving safety at the crossings, it only marginally reduces the barrier 
down times which continue to impact on the daily lives of residents.  

  
       In Addlestone, crossing times have increased due to the length of trains 

being run on the local service being to long for the platform, resulting in 
barriers being lowered for longer. 

  
       One complicating factor to date has been the need to mitigate the risk of 

flooding in any proposed alternative infrastructure. 
  

       The progress and potential flood relief offered by the River Thames 
Scheme provides an opportunity to re-assess the feasibility of alternative 
solutions to a level crossing which could positively impact the lives of road 
users and local residents by reducing traffic congestion, improving air 
quality enhancing local connectivity.  

  
That the Council resolves the following: 
  

       Runnymede Borough Council is committed to improving connectivity and 
reducing the negative impact of level crossings on our towns, including the 
environmental impact. 

  
       Runnymede Borough Council will continue to engage with all stakeholders 

from Network Rail, the Department of Transport, South Western Railways, 
Heathrow Southern Rail Link, residents groups and local businesses to 
pursue viable alternatives. 

  
       To support this the Leader of the Council will write to Network Rail to 

request a review of level crossing provision in the Borough in light of the 
development of the River Thames Scheme, and to provide a cost analysis 
for alternative options which could address the congestion and delays 
caused by the current level crossing sites in Runnymede. 

  
12.   Minority Group Priority Business 

 
No minority group priority business has been registered under Standing Order 23. 
 

 

 
13.   Press and Public to be Excluded by Resolution 

 
To consider any items so resolved at the meeting. 
 

 

 

5



RBC FC 09.02.23 
 

P a g e  |  283 
 

Runnymede Borough Council 
 

Full Council 
 

Thursday, 9 February 2023 at 7.30 pm 
 
Members of the 
Council present: 

Councillors M Harnden (Mayor), S Saise-Marshall (Deputy Mayor), 
A Balkan, A Berardi, J Broadhead, R Bromley, T Burton, D Coen, 
D Cotty, M Cressey, V Cunningham, M Darby, R Davies, E Gill, 
L Gillham, J Gracey, T Gracey, M Heath, C Howorth, J Hulley, S Jenkins, 
A King, N King, R King, S Lewis, C Mann, I Mullens, M Nuti, N Prescot, 
S Ringham, P Snow, S Walsh, D Whyte, S Whyte, S Williams, 
M Willingale and J WiIson. 
  

  
490 Mayor's Announcements 

 
The Mayor provided an update on the events and engagements that she had attended 
since the last Council. 
  
The Council observed a minute’s silence in memory of former Councillor Peter Anderson, 
who had recently passed away. 
  

491 Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 8 December 2022 were confirmed and 
signed as a correct record. 
  

492 Apologies for Absence 
 
Councillors D Clarke, S Dennett, J Furey and J Olorenshaw gave apologies for absence. 
  

493 Declarations of Interest 
 
Agenda item 10 – Notices of Motion from Members of the Council under Standing Order 15 
  
Councillors Heath and Nuti declared that they had a conflict of interest in proposed motion 
b) by virtue of them being county councillors.  They withdrew from the meeting whilst this 
motion was discussed. 
  

494 Speaking or Questions from Members of the Public under Standing Order 12 
 
There were no public questions. 
  

495 Petitions 
 
There were no petitions. 
  

496 Questions from Members of the Council under Standing Order 13 
 
a) Councillor Carl Mann asked the Leader of the Council the following question:  
  
“Can the Leader of the Council please give us an update on Egham Orbit?” 
  
The Leader responded in the following terms: 
  
“I am very pleased to report that the Council has reached an agreement with Achieve 

6

Agenda Item 2



RBC FC 09.02.23 
 

P a g e  | 284 
 

Lifestyle which maps out a way forward to April 2024.   
  
The main points of the agreement are: 
  

i)      Achieve Lifestyle was to pay the Council a significant sum towards the arrears 
owed. This sum has been received by the Council. 
  

ii)     Achieve Lifestyle will pay the Council a revised total monthly rent through to April 
2024. This sum will cover the Council’s cost of finance on the Egham Orbit site and 
contribute to the reduction of the total arrears outstanding.  I can confirm that 
Achieve Lifestyle’s January rental payment has been received. 
  

iii)    The Council will meet regularly with Achieve Lifestyle throughout 2023 to review 
ongoing progress and performance of the Egham Orbit.  Through these meetings 
we will look to ensure performance standards are met, the finances of Achieve 
Lifestyle continue to develop and the social value we seek is being delivered. 
  

iv)    In January 2024 we will conduct a joint review to discuss the way forward after April 
2024.  My hope is that Achieve Lifestyle is on a better financial footing and is 
meeting the performance standards we seek.  If so and if our conditions are 
satisfied, we will give consideration fairly to any variation of the terms of the existing 
lease to ensure there is a mutually beneficial and sustainable relationship going 
forward. We will however retain the right to pursue alternative actions if this is not 
the case.  

  
I hope you will appreciate that I have had to be discrete in respect of specific figures due to 
their commercially sensitive nature.  Further details will be coming forward in a forthcoming 
exempt committee report.” 
  
Councillor Coen asked for details of the joint committee’s membership and meeting 
arrangements.  The Leader confirmed that the membership would include officers and 
members (including an opposition member) and representatives of Achieve Lifestyle, and 
that it would meet every other month. 
  
Councillor Howorth asked whether the Leader felt that a favourable arrangement had been 
reached.  The Leader said that the future of a first-class facility for the borough now looked 
more certain. 
  
Question b) 
  
Councillor Sylvia Whyte asked the Leader of the Council the following question:  
  
“Last September I was pleased that Runnymede Borough Council supported the Great Big 
Green Week, be it at a very low level, promoting the event on social media and 
encouraging community groups and organisations to get involved. 
  
I note that this year’s event runs between 10th and 18th June.  Is Runnymede supporting 
this event and are we able to raise the profile a bit higher than last year to get more people 
involved?” 
  
The Leader responded in the following terms: 
  
“As you will know, the Climate Change Strategy forms a core component of our Corporate 
Plan and events like the Great Big Green Week provide a great opportunity to raise 
awareness of actions to tackle climate change and encourage a range of everyday 
activities that can contribute to meeting our aspirations. 
  

7



RBC FC 09.02.23 
 

P a g e  | 285 
 

We will be bringing forward a report on the Great Big Green Week to Corporate 
Management Committee on 23 February 2023. This report will set out several options in 
terms of how the Council could get involved, however the approach that I will be 
recommending is that the Council takes a far greater role in participating this year by 
proactively running a series of events with the aims of: 
  

• Bringing together and engaging with businesses and our residents of all ages on 
the important issue of climate change; 

• Celebrating local climate change initiatives and encouraging more people and 
organisations to develop their own initiatives; 

• Raising the profile of the Council’s response to climate change; and,  
• Providing useful information and signposting to other relevant organisations to give 

people the tools they need to help the borough transition to net zero. 
  
Should Corporate Management Committee endorse the recommendation in the report, 
officers will start planning events in liaison with Councillors and local stakeholders.  
  
Whilst there will be a requirement to carry out more detailed planning should the 
recommendation be endorsed, at a high level, we will look to deliver: 
  

i)      A general event for local people 
ii)     An event targeted at young people 
iii)    And an event focussing on the borough’s businesses. 

  
I know this is something you have been supportive of and involved with previously. I hope 
all members of the Corporate Management Committee will support the recommendations 
and encourage all councillors to engage in planning suitable events for our local 
communities.” 
  
Councillor S Whyte asked whether local fairs could be suitable locations for Council 
operated stalls?  The Leader said that officers were investigating this possibility. 
  
Question c) 
  
Councillor Robert King asked the Leader of the Council the following question:  
  
“Does the Leader agree that NHS workers, from porters to doctors, from nurses to 
cleaners, are invaluable to the health of the nation and that we should show the best 
support we can from Runnymede Borough Council to them and particularly those who live 
and work in our Borough?” 
  
The Leader responded in the following terms: 
  
“You are right to highlight the important role NHS workers play but I do disagree with the 
narrow premise of your question. 
  
I believe that in addition to workers across the NHS there are huge numbers of others who 
also contribute to the health of the nation, including teachers, members of the fire-service, 
athletes who set an inspirational example, and other medical professionals such as carers 
and General Practitioners, and, of course, parents. 
  
As Councillors we are elected to represent all those who live and work in our borough and I 
would argue that this is best delivered by ensuring that our decisions are taken in the 
interest of the broadest possible number of residents. 
  
It is to that purpose, that members and officers have worked diligently to deliver policies 
including many set out in our budget this evening to support our residents. These include: 

8



RBC FC 09.02.23 
 

P a g e  | 286 
 

  
• The Council Tax Support Scheme; 
• Additional support funding through the HRA; 
• The Step-Up Scheme, and, of course; 
• Our efforts towards net zero.” 

  
Councillor R King asked whether the Prime Minister was correct to clap the efforts of health 
workers in the context of budget cuts?  The Leader acknowledged the hard work of these 
individuals, but noted that health services were outside the remit of district and borough 
councils. 
  
Councillor Davies asked whether the Council could consider setting up a package of 
support for striking workers?  The Leader said that the Council already had a broad range 
of measures in place, with the aim of supporting as many residents as possible.  
  
Question d) 
  
Councillor Abby King asked the Leader of the Council the following question: 
  
“Will the Leader join the Labour Party and the Labour and Co-operative group on this 
Council, and lobby his Conservative friends presently in government to rule out any 
increases in the government’s energy price cap from April and force energy firms to pass 
on recent falls in gas prices to households.” 
  
The Leader replied in the following terms: 
  
“The Government has already acted in this regard. Given the overall state of public 
finances and the pressures put on them in recent years, difficult decisions have had to be 
made. The Government was clear that the support package put in place in October 2022 
was temporary and to provide focussed support over the winter months, with the intention 
of ending on 31 March 2023. The revised Energy Bills Discount Scheme will provide further 
support, albeit at a reduced rate, for private customers and businesses over the next year 
to 31 March 2024.  
  
However, against that we should also recognise that energy prices are beginning to come 
down. A significant, but not the sole, driver of their increase was the unprovoked invasion 
of Ukraine by Russia which highlighted the energy dependency Europe had built up on 
Russian fossil fuels. One of the biggest users of Russian gas was Germany and I have 
been taken by the pragmatic steps proposed by the liberal members of the governing 
coalition from the Free Democrats who have joined with the opposition CDU in calling for a 
halt in the shut down of Germany’s remaining nuclear power plants, and are suggesting a 
reversal on some fossil fuel policy as they seek to diversify their fuel supply. 
  
I cannot help but wonder if we will see a similar Damascene shift in the approach by 
liberals in the UK who have in the recent past also shown a pragmatic willingness to re-
think their policies when in government.” 
  
Councillor A King asked whether members could receive demographic breakdown of those 
who had received support grants?  The Leader said that he was happy to have this 
information compiled and shared via the Corporate Management Committee. 
  
Councillor R King asked whether residents of larger properties should be asked to 
contribute more?  The Leader invited Councillor R King to share a written proposal with 
him. 
  
Question e) 
  

9



RBC FC 09.02.23 
 

P a g e  | 287 
 

Councillor Rhys Davies asked the Leader of the Council the following question: 
  
“How many Improvement Notices have been issued by Runnymede’s private sector 
housing team in the last year, broken down by housing tenure (housing association or 
private rental) and Category 1 or 2 hazards and how many resulted in further action?” 
  
The Leader responded in the following terms: 
  
“I can confirm that in the year 2021/22, 11 Improvement notices were issued to the private 
rental sector and none to the hosing association sector. In the 11 notices issued: 
  

• 9 Category 1 hazards were highlighted 
• 16 Category 2 hazards were highlighted 

  
Where an improvement notice has not been actioned and improvements have not been 
made, further action would be required by the Council. 
  
I can confirm that none of the improvement notices have resulted in further action which is 
a positive sign that the issues identified were remediated by the landlord or management 
company for the property.  
  
It’s worth noting that 11 notices out of over 30,000 properties in the borough, or less than 1 
thousandth of 1%, is an incredibly low rate.” 
  
Councillor Davies asked whether the Council should be doing more to drive up standards in 
the borough’s private and public housing stock?  The Leader said that a paper on this 
matter was to be considered by the Housing Committee in due course. 
  
Councillor Hulley asked whether the figures provided by the Leader demonstrated that the 
vast majority of landlords were providing high quality Housing?  The Leader agreed with 
Councillor Hulley. 
  
Councillor Mullens asked how many environmental health inspections had been carried out 
on homes?  The Leader said that he would ask for this information to be reported to the 
Environment and Sustainability Committee. 
  

497 Recommendations from Committees 
  

498 Housing Revenue Account Estimates for 2022/23 - recommendation from Housing 
Committee 
 
It was proposed (by Councillor J. Gracey) and seconded (by Councillor Hulley) that the 
recommendation of the Corporate Management Committee be agreed. 
  
As part of the debate, the Chair of the Housing Committee said that she would arrange for 
information on the number of dwellings that had been empty for more than two years to be 
distributed to members. 
  
A named vote was requested on the motion and the voting was as follows: 
  
For the motion (34) 
  
Councillors Harnden, Saise-Marshall, Balkan, Berardi, Broadhead, Bromley, Burton, Coen, 
Cotty, Cressy, Cunningham, Darby, Gill, Gillham, J. Gracey, T. Gracey, Heath, Howorth, 
Hulley, Jenkins, N. King, Lewis, Mann, Mullens, Nuti, Prescot, Ringham, Snow, Walsh, D. 
Whyte, S. Whyte, Williams, Willingale and Wilson. 
  

10



RBC FC 09.02.23 
 

P a g e  | 288 
 

Against the motion (3) 
  
Councillors Davies, A. King and R. King. 
  
Abstentions (0) 
  
The motion was carried. 
  
Resolved that the draft revenue estimates for 2023/24 be approved and that provision be 
made accordingly. 
  

499 Medium Term Financial Strategy - recommendation from the Corporate Management 
Committee 
 
It was proposed (by Councillor T. Gracey) and seconded (by Councillor Howorth) that the 
recommendation of the Corporate Management Committee be agreed. 
  
Resolved that the Medium Term Financial Strategy be agreed. 
  

500 2023/24 Treasury Management Strategy - recommendation from the Corporate 
Management Committee 
 
It was proposed (by Councillor T. Gracey) and seconded (by Councillor Howorth) that the 
recommendation of the Corporate Management Committee be agreed. 
  
Resolved that the following be approved: 
  

1)    The 2023/24 Treasury Management Strategy, encompassing the Annual Investment 
Strategy, as set out in the officer’s report; 
  

2)    The Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators for 2023/24, as set out in the 
report; 
  

3)    The revised Treasury Management Policy Statement and Treasury Management 
Practices, as set out in the appendices to the officer’s report; 
  

4)    The authorised limit for external borrowing by the Council in 2023/24 of 
£700,613,000 (this being the statutory limit determined under Section 3 (1) of the 
Local Government Act 2003); and 
  

5)    The Council’s MRP statement for 2023/24, as below: 
  
“The Council will use the asset life method as its main method for calculating MRP.  In 
normal circumstances, MRP will be set aside from the date of acquisition.  However, in 
relation to capital expenditure on property purchases and/or development, we will start 
setting aside an MRP provision from the date that the asset becomes operational and/or 
revenue income is generated”. 
  

501 Capital and Investment Strategy and Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2026/27 - 
recommendation from the Corporate Management Committee 
 
It was proposed (by Councillor T. Gracey) and seconded (by Councillor Howorth) that the 
recommendation of the Corporate Management Committee be agreed. 
  
It was proposed (by Councillor R. King) and seconded (by Councillor D. Whyte) that the 
Capital Budget be amended in accordance with the published proposed amendments from 
the Labour and Co-operative, Liberal Democrat, Green and Independent Alliance, and 

11



RBC FC 09.02.23 
 

P a g e  | 289 
 

Runnymede Independent Residents Groups. 
  
A named vote was required on the proposed amendment and the voting was as follows: 
  
For the amendment (13) 
  
Councillors Berardi, Burton, Davies, Gill, Gillham, Jenkins, A. King, R. King, Mullens, 
Ringham, D. Whyte, S. Whyte and Williams. 
  
Against the amendment (23) 
  
Councillors Saise-Marshall, Balkan, Broadhead, Bromley, Coen, Cotty, Cressy, 
Cunningham, Darby, J. Gracey, T. Gracey, Heath, Howorth, Hulley, N. King, Lewis, Mann, 
Nuti, Prescot, Snow, Walsh, Willingale and Wilson. 
  
Abstentions (1) 
  
Councillor Harnden. 
  
The proposed amendment fell. 
  
A named vote was required on the proposed substantive motion and the voting was as 
follows: 
  
For the motion (23) 
  
Councillors Saise-Marshall, Balkan, Broadhead, Bromley, Coen, Cotty, Cressy, 
Cunningham, Darby, J. Gracey, T. Gracey, Heath, Howorth, Hulley, N. King, Lewis, Mann, 
Nuti, Prescot, Snow, Walsh, Willingale and Wilson. 
  
Against the motion (13) 
  
Councillors Berardi, Burton, Davies, Gill, Gillham, Jenkins, A. King, R. King, Mullens, 
Ringham, D. Whyte, S. Whyte and Williams. 
  
Abstentions (1) 
  
Councillor Harnden. 
  
The motion was carried. 
  
Resolved that the following be approved: 
  

1)    The Capital Strategy set out in the officer’s report at Appendix ‘A’ and the Capital 
Programme at Exempt Appendix ‘B’; 
  

2)    That useable capital receipts be maintained at a level of £2 million. 
  

502 2023/24 Budget and Council Tax - recommendation from the Corporate Management 
Committee 
 
It was proposed (by Councillor T. Gracey) and seconded (by Councillor Howorth) that the 
recommendation of the Corporate Management Committee be agreed. 
  
It was proposed (by Councillor R. King) and seconded (by Councillor D. Whyte) that the 
Revenue Budget be amended in accordance with the published proposed amendments 
from the Labour and Co-operative, Liberal Democrat, Green and Independent Alliance, and 

12



RBC FC 09.02.23 
 

P a g e  | 290 
 

Runnymede Independent Residents Groups. 
  
A named vote was required on the proposed amendment and the voting was as follows: 
  
For the amendment (13) 
  
Councillors Berardi, Burton, Davies, Gill, Gillham, Jenkins, A. King, R. King, Mullens, 
Ringham, D. Whyte, S. Whyte and Williams. 
  
Against the amendment (23) 
  
Councillors Saise-Marshall, Balkan, Broadhead, Bromley, Coen, Cotty, Cressy, 
Cunningham, Darby, J. Gracey, T. Gracey, Heath, Howorth, Hulley, N. King, Lewis, Mann, 
Nuti, Prescot, Snow, Walsh, Willingale and Wilson. 
  
Abstentions (1) 
  
Councillor Harnden. 
  
The proposed amendment fell. 
  
It was proposed (by Councillor Mullens) and seconded (by Councillor Gillham) that the 
Revenue Budget be amended in accordance with the published proposed amendments 
from the Runnymede Independent Residents Groups. 
  
A named vote was required on the proposed amendment and the voting was as follows: 
  
For the amendment (15) 
  
Councillors Harnden, Berardi, Burton, Davies, Gill, Gillham, Jenkins, A. King, R. King, 
Mann, Mullens, Ringham, D. Whyte, S. Whyte and Williams. 
  
Against the amendment (21) 
  
Councillors Saise-Marshall, Balkan, Broadhead, Bromley, Coen, Cressy, Cunningham, 
Darby, J. Gracey, T. Gracey, Heath, Howorth, Hulley, N. King, Lewis, Nuti, Prescot, Snow, 
Walsh, Willingale and Wilson. 
  
Abstentions (1) 
  
Councillor Cotty. 
  
The proposed amendment fell. 
  
Separate named votes were requested on each part of the officer’s recommendation. 
  
Proposed motion a) 
  
That the Revised Budget for 2022/23 and Budget Estimates for 2023/24, including growth 
items, as set out in the report and at Appendices B, C and E be approved. 
  
For the motion (23) 
  
Councillors Saise-Marshall, Balkan, Broadhead, Bromley, Coen, Cotty, Cressy, 
Cunningham, Darby, J. Gracey, T. Gracey, Heath, Howorth, Hulley, N. King, Lewis, Mann, 
Nuti, Prescot, Snow, Walsh, Willingale and Wilson. 
  

13



RBC FC 09.02.23 
 

P a g e  | 291 
 

Against the motion (14) 
  
Councillors Harnden, Berardi, Burton, Davies, Gill, Gillham, Jenkins, A. King, R. King, 
Mullens, Ringham, D. Whyte, S. Whyte and Williams. 
  
Abstentions (0) 
  
The motion was carried. 
  
Proposed motion b) 
  
That an increase to the Band D Council Tax level of 2.99% (£5.37) from £179.55 to 
£184.92 be agreed. 
  
For the motion (34) 
  
Councillors Harnden, Saise-Marshall, Balkan, Berardi, Broadhead, Bromley, Burton, Coen, 
Cotty, Cressy, Cunningham, Darby, Gill, Gillham, J. Gracey, T. Gracey, Heath, Howorth, 
Hulley, Jenkins, N. King, Lewis, Mann, Mullens, Nuti, Prescot, Ringham, Snow, Walsh, D. 
Whyte, S. Whyte, Williams, Willingale and Wilson. 
  
Against the motion (2) 
  
Councillors Davies and R. King. 
  
Abstentions (1) 
  
Councillor A. King. 
  
The motion was carried. 
  
Proposed motion c) 
  
That a revised minimum threshold of £5m for the General Fund Working Balance be 
agreed. 
  
For the motion (37) 
  
Councillors Harnden, Saise-Marshall, Balkan, Berardi, Broadhead, Bromley, Burton, Coen, 
Cotty, Cressy, Cunningham, Darby, Davies, Gill, Gillham, J. Gracey, T. Gracey, Heath, 
Howorth, Hulley, Jenkins, A. King, N. King, R. King, Lewis, Mann, Mullens, Nuti, Prescot, 
Ringham, Snow, Walsh, D. Whyte, S. Whyte, Williams, Willingale and Wilson. 
  
Against the motion (0) 
  
Abstentions (0) 
  
The motion was carried. 
  
Proposed motion d) 
  
That the transfers to and from Reserves as set out in the report be agreed. 
  
For the motion (27) 
  
Councillors Harnden, Saise-Marshall, Balkan, Broadhead, Bromley, Coen, Cotty, Cressy, 
Cunningham, Darby, Gill, Gillham, J. Gracey, T. Gracey, Heath, Howorth, Hulley, Jenkins, 

14



RBC FC 09.02.23 
 

P a g e  | 292 
 

N. King, Lewis, Mann, Nuti, Prescot, Snow, Walsh, Willingale and Wilson. 
  
Against the motion (10) 
  
Councillors Berardi, Burton, Davies, A. King, R. King, Mullens, Ringham, D. Whyte, S. 
Whyte and Williams. 
  
Abstentions (0) 
  
The motion was carried. 
  
[The agenda order was changed in accordance with Standing Order 16.1.3 to take item 9 
(Council Tax Resolution and Council Tax Setting Committee) at this point.] 
  

503 Council Tax Resolution and Council Tax Setting Committee 
 
Resolved that the formation of a Council Tax Setting Committee, as detailed in the report 
and at Appendix B, delegating final approval of the Council Tax Resolution to that 
Committee, once all precept notifications been received, be approved. 
  

504 Englefield Green Committee - position of Chairman - recommendation from the 
Englefield Green Committee 
 
It was proposed (by Councillor Prescot) and seconded (by Councillor King) that Councillor 
Prescot’s position as Chairman of the Englefield Green Committee be debated. 
  
A named vote was requested on the resolution of the Englefield Green Committee, namely 
whether to accede to the request to remove Councillor Prescot as Chairman. The voting 
was as follows: 
  
For the request of the Englefield Green Committee (10) 
  
Councillors Berardi, Burton, Davies, Jenkins, A. King, R. King, Mullens, Ringham, D. 
Whyte, S. Whyte and Williams. 
  
Against the request of the Englefield Green Committee (22) 
  
Councillors Saise-Marshall, Balkan, Broadhead, Bromley, Coen, Cotty, Cressy, 
Cunningham, Darby, J. Gracey, T. Gracey, Heath, Howorth, Hulley, N. King, Lewis, Nuti, 
Prescot, Snow, Walsh, Willingale and Wilson. 
  
Abstentions (5) 
  
Councillors Harnden, Burton, Gill, Gillham and Mann. 
  
Resolved that Councillor N Prescot remain as Chairman of the Englefield Green 
Committee. 
  
[Councillors Broadhead and J. Gracey left the meeting at this point.] 
  

505 Notices of Motion from Members of the Council under Standing Order 15 
 
Motion a) 
  
The motion, as set out in the summons, was moved by Councillor R. King, subject to a 
referral being made to the Corporate Management Committee. 
  

15



RBC FC 09.02.23 
 

P a g e  | 293 
 

The motion was seconded by Councillor Davies. 
  
The motion was debated by the Council. 
  
A named vote was requested on the motion and the voting was as follows: 
  
For the motion (12) 
  
Councillors Berardi, Burton, Davies, Gillham, Jenkins, A. King, R. King, Mullens, Ringham, 
D. Whyte, S. Whyte and Williams. 
  
Against the motion (22) 
  
Councillors Saise-Marshall, Balkan, Bromley, Coen, Cotty, Cressey, Cunningham, Darby, 
Gill, T. Gracey, Heath, Howorth, Hulley, N. King, Lewis, Mann, Nuti, Prescot, Snow, Walsh, 
Willingale and Wilson. 
  
Abstentions (1) 
  
Councillor Harnden. 
  
The motion was lost. 
  
[Councillors Heath and Nuti left the meeting at this point.] 
  
Motion b) 
  
The motion, as set out in the summons, was moved by Councillor Davies, subject to a 
referral being made to the Corporate Management Committee. 
  
The motion was seconded by Councillor R King. 
  
Councillor T. Gracey proposed that the fourth call in the proposed motion be amended as 
follows: 
  
Original text: 
  
“That Borough and District Councils in Surrey should be provided with a compensation fund from 
Surrey County Council, so funds can be distributed equally to all permit holders, given they have 
been receiving a worse service than they applied for because of the actions by Surrey County 
Council.” 
  
Amended text: 
  
"That Runnymede Borough Council encourages Surrey County Council to consider suitable 
compensation to those Runnymede residents who held a Residential Parking Permit, that 
the actions of the County have impaired the ability to enforce." 
  
The proposed amendment was seconded by Councillor R. King. 
  
The proposed amendment was put to the vote and carried. 
  
A further amendment to include a sixth call requesting that Runnymede Borough Council 
review its own enforcement needs in light of Surrey County Council’s decision was 
proposed by Councillor Coen. 
  
The proposed amendment was seconded by Councillor Balkan. 

16



RBC FC 09.02.23 
 

P a g e  | 294 
 

  
The proposed amendment was withdrawn in accordance with Standing Order 17.17, as it 
could be taken forward as part of the relevant committee’s programme of work and not as 
part of a letter to the Leader of Surrey County Council. 
  
The amended motion was debated by the Council. 
  
The amended motion was carried. 
  

506 Minority Group Priority Business 
 
There was no minority group priority business. 
  

507 Press and Public to be Excluded by Resolution 
 
There was no exempt business. 
 

 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 11.03 pm.) Chairman 
 

17


	Agenda
	2 Minutes

